
 
  
 

 
 
 

UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

            REGION III 
2443 WARRENVILLE ROAD, SUITE 210 

LISLE, ILLINOIS 60532-4352 
 
      March 14, 2023 
 
Tahir Mohamed, M.D. 
ARK Cardiovascular & Arrhythmia Center, PLC  
6050 Greenfield Rd. Ste. 101 
Dearborn, MI  48126 
 
Dear Tahir Mohamed: 
 
This refers to the amendment request letter dated October 20, 2022, and March 3, 2023, 
received in our offices on March 7, 2023. Your letter requests changing the Radiation Safety 
Officer (RSO) on your license to Mufeed Otaibey, M.S. 
 
Since your letter failed to include sufficient information needed to complete this review, I called 
the only phone number stated in the letter, 313-945-9000. I called this number, told the person 
answering the call who I was, the name of my agency and my position, who I needed to speak 
to and why. She referred me to “Pam.” I told Pam the exact same specific information. She 
referred me to Aida Berry. I told Aida the exact same specific information also. She gave me 
your cellphone number and email address. 
 
Please specify the date when Ray Carlson ceased to serve as your RSO. 
 
We do not know who Mufeed Otaibey, M.S. is or what his/her qualifications and credentials are 
that would make him/her acceptable as your new RSO, among other things. Please provide the 
appropriate qualifications for Mufeed Otaibey, M.S. and please do not submit college 
transcripts, patient records, resumes or curricula vitae. 
 
Here is a link to our Medical Licensee Tookit: https://www.nrc.gov/materials/miau/med-use-
toolkit.html 
 
Here is a link to 10 CFR 35.50, training for RSO:   https://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/doc-
collections/cfr/part035/part035-0050.html 
 
Depending on what Mufeed Otaibey’s qualifications are and when s/he received 
them,compliance with other regulations may also apply, including, but necessarily limited to, 10 
CFR 35.57 and 35.59. 
 
Please use our medical programs guidance at:  https://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/doc-
collections/nuregs/staff/sr1556/v9/index.html  to prepare your written response. This is NUREG 
1556 Vo. 9, Rev. 3. 
 
In the Table of Contents is a listing of the sections in the guidance. In particular, it will be helpful 
to use sections 8.7 Item 7 and 8.7.1; section 9 and 9.1; Appendix B; Appendix C (limited to 
proposed RSO); Appendix D; Appendix E and Appendix I. Please be sure to include in your 
response a currently dated and signed Delegation of Authority (DoA), a sample of which is  

https://www.nrc.gov/materials/miau/med-use-toolkit.html
https://www.nrc.gov/materials/miau/med-use-toolkit.html
https://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/doc-collections/cfr/part035/part035-0050.html
https://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/doc-collections/cfr/part035/part035-0050.html
https://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/doc-collections/nuregs/staff/sr1556/v9/index.html
https://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/doc-collections/nuregs/staff/sr1556/v9/index.html


  
 

T. Mohamed - 2 - 

  
 

 
 
found in Appendix I. Both Mufeed Otaibey, M.S. and a senior management representative for 
this license must sign the DoA. 
 
Address your written response to my attention and identify it as additional information to control 
no. 634745. It must be accompanied by either an NRC Form 313 or a letter containing all the 
information on the NRC Form 313, in addition to the specific information about Mufeed Otaibey. 
Only submit one complete response by one means of transmission, sending a scanned PDF 
attached to an email works fine. That should be sent to R2-DRSSMail.Resource@nrc.gov with a 
“cc” to me. My fax number is 630-515-1078. The street address is in our header above. 
 
Please provide this information within 30 days, or by close of business April 14, 2023.  
 
If you would like to schedule a phone call to discuss this and/or if you need additional time to 
prepare the response, please contact me via email at colleen.casey@nrc.gov to arrange that. 

Please be reminded, that 10 CFR 30.9(a) “Completeness and accuracy of information” 

requires that:  “(a) Information provided to the Commission by an applicant for a license or by a 

licensee or information required by statute or by the Commission's regulations, orders, or 

license conditions to be maintained by the applicant or the licensee shall be complete and 

accurate in all material respects.” 

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.390 of the NRC’s “Rules of Practice,” a copy of this letter will be 
available electronically for public inspection in the NRC Public Document Room or from the 
NRC's Agencywide Documents Access and Management System (ADAMS), accessible from 
the NRC Web site at https://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/adams.html.  
 

Sincerely, 
 

 
 
 
 
      Colleen Carol Casey 
      Health Physicist 
      Materials Licensing Branch 
 
License No. 21-35069-01   
Docket No.  030-38647 
 
Control No. 634745 
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